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Neshanic Station Historic District

Name of Property

Somerset Co., NJ

County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

pri\iate
public-local

[ ] public-State
|:[ public-Federal

Category of Property

(Check only one box)
[ ] building(s)
district
[[]site
[ ] structure

[ ] object

Name of related muitiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property

(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
94 32
1 1
5 0
0 0
100 33

Number of contributing resources previously

listed in the National Register
2

buildings
sites
structures
objects

Total

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/ single dwelling,

Current Functions
{Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/ single dwelling

TRANSPORTATION/ rail-related

TRANSPORTATION/ rail-related

TRANSPORTATION/road-related

TRANSPORTATION! road-related

DOMESTIC/ hotel

RELIGION/ religious facility

COMMERCE/ specialty & department stores

COMMERCE/ restaurant and specialty store

COMMERCE/ warehouse

DOMESTIC/ secondary structure

RELIGION/ religious facility FUNERARY/ cemetery
DOMESTIC/ secondary structure
FUNERARY/ cemetery

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials

{Enter categories from instructions) {Enter categories from instructions)
Italian villa foundation STONE
Italianate walls WOoD
Gothic Revival VINYL

Queen Anne

Narrative Description

roof ASPHALT

other

{Describe the historic and current condition of the properly on one or more continuation sheets.)




Neshanic Station Historic District

Name of Properly

Somerset Co., NJ

County and State

8 Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
{Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the
property for National Register listing.)

A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

|:| D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria considerations
{mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

[ 1A owned by areligious institution or used for
religious purposes.

[ 1B removed from its original location.

[ ]¢ abirthptace or grave.

[ ]D acemetery.

[ ]E areconstructed building, object or structure.
|:| F acommemorative property.

|:| G iess than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

Areas of Significance
(Enter calegories from instructions)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Period of Significance
c. 1857 - 1940

Significant Dates

1864

Significant Person
{Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

John G, Schenck

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder
Herter Quick {builder)

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography

(cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

[ ] preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67} has been requested
previously listed in the National Register
previously determined eligible by the National
Register
designated a National Historic Landmark
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
#

Primary location of additional data

Stale Historic Preservation Office
Other State agency

Federal agency

Local government

University

Other

Name of repository:




D recorded by Historic American Engineering

Record #
Neshanic Station Historie District Somerset Co., NJ
Name of Property County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property Approximately 12 acres

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a conlinuation sheet.)

1 3 .
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
2 4

See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
{Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.}

Boundary Justification
{Exptain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Ann Parsekian, Janice Armstrong, Dennis Bertland

organization Dennis Bertland Associates . date February 2015
street & number P.O. Box 315 telephone 609-397-3380
city or town Stockton state _ NJ zip code 08539

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
{Check with the SHPO or FPC for any additional items)

Property Ownher

{Complete this item at the request of the SHPC or FPO.)
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street & number telephone

city or town state zip code
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Architectural Classification (continued)

Shingle Style
Colonial Revival
Craftsman

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

Summary Paragraph

The Neshanic Station Historic District encompasses most of the village of that name, located at
the southern end of Branchburg Township in western Somerset County at a “goose neck” bend in the
South Branch of the Raritan River, one of the major rivers draining New Jersey’s Piedmont geographical
province. The village occupies a generally level site above the river’s flood plain between the two rail-
road lines whose construction during the third quarter of the 19" century provided the impetus for its
founding and subsequent development. The community encompasses, for the most part, several rectiline-
arly platted blocks located north and south of Maple Avenue/Elm Street, an early road leading to a bridge
crossing the South Branch and a mill hamlet on the opposite bank (the New Jersey and National Registers
listed Neshanic Mills Historic District) as well as somewhat more irregular development to the south
along Main Street around the former station of the abandoned New Jersey Central (South Branch) Rail-
road and to the north along Fairview Drive adjoining the station site of the still active Lehigh Valley line,
now Norfolk Southern Railroad. Neshanic Station is mostly in single-family and two-family residential
use but it also includes a number of commercial and institutional uses, along with several railroad related
features. Open space and agricultural lands border the village along the river and to its north, while the
area to the west and south presents a mix of mid/late 20™ century residential development with scattered
open space and industrial properties. The Neshanic Station Historic District includes the northern and
eastern portions of the village, the area developed in the late 19" and early 20™ centuries, along with open
space along the river, and the Lehigh Valley Railroad Bridge over the South Branch, a small railroad
bridge over Pleasant Run Road and the embankment between them, along with the Somerset County
Route 667 bridge over the South Branch and the abandoned New Jersey Central Railroad bridge over the
South Branch (both of which were previously listed on the New Jersey and National Registers as part of
the Neshanic Mills Historic District) but excludes the modern residential and industrial development to
the south and west.

General Description

An inventory of the district’s resources forms part of this section, and all resources have been cat-
egorized as contributing or non-contributing to the district’s significance in accordance with National
Register guidelines. The district contains 99 contributing resources and 34 non-contributing resources.
Of the contributing resources, all are buildings, except for five structures (four railroad bridges, one road
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bridge and the district’s road network) and one site, a small graveyard, which surrounded by modern in-
dustrial development on the south side of the district, constitutes a discontiguous resource. The contrib-
uting buildings are mostly modest single-family and two-family dwellings dating to the late 19" and early
20™ centuries and exhibiting stylistic influences typical of that era, but also include a church, firehouse,
train station and small hotel and several commercial buildings and warehouses, along with a number of
modest outbuildings such as wagon houses, stables and garages. The non-contributing resources include
33 buildings and one site, that of the demolished Lehigh Valley Railroad station. Non-contributing build-
ings are late 19™- or early 20™-century houses that have been so altered that they have lost their integrity
of design and materials or dwellings and garages post-dating the district’s period of significance. Build-
ings are in generally good condition.

Streetscape

The district’s street network as developed in the late 19™ century was shaped by the neighbor-
hood’s early road pattern and the two railroad lines, as well as natural conditions. The Y-angled intersec-
tion of Pearl and Olive Streets and the associated irregularly shaped blocks platted about 1872 (figure 8)
resulted from the routes of the east/west road leading to the South Branch crossing (EIm Street/Maple
Avenue, figures 1 & 3) and the Easton and Amboy (Lehigh Valley) Railroad, as well as the limitations of
the South Branch flood plain, while in the less constrained area south of Maple Avenue, platted in the ear-
ly 20™ century, a rectilinear pattern was obtained (figures 11 & 12). The rectilinear blocks south of Maple
Avenue also incorporated alleys (still unpaved) running along rear lot lines, but these have been aban-
doned as public rights-of way. Main Street was opened in the 1860s to give access to the South Branch
Railroad Station (figure 5), but, constrained by the river’s flood plain, turns sharply westward along the
rail line to provide road frontage (Woodfern Road) for the rail-related commercial and industrial devel-
opment that occurred there. Fairview Drive between Pleasant Run and Blackpoint Roads similarly was
opened by 1888 (figure 6) to facilitate development in the vicinity of the Lehigh Valley Railroad Station.

All district roads are asphalt-paved, and feature one travel lane in each direction with painted cen-
terlines on EIm and Main Streets, Maple Avenue and Pleasant Run Road. Concrete sidewalks are present
on the east side of Pearl Street and the north side of Olive Street, and concrete curbing is found along
those streets and in scattered locations elsewhere. Street signage in the district consists of standard road
identification and traffic control signs. In many places, lawns extend to the edge of the pavement or un-
paved shoulder. Street trees are irregularly planted throughout the district.

With few exceptions district buildings occupy lots of a half acre or less in size, planted in grass
and landscaped with a variety of trees and shrubs; smaller, narrower lots predominate on Pearl and the
north side of Olive and Elm Streets, and along those streets houses are more closely spaced and have
shorter setbacks. Lots are larger on Maple Avenue, and houses there are more widely spaced and have
longer setbacks. One notable exception is the Schenck House (inventory #56), which is set well back
from the street on a 4.5-acre lot with park-like grounds. The street frontages of several properties are de-
lineated with fences or hedges or other plantings; street trees exhibit a scattered distribution pattern.
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Resource Types and Architectural Styles

Neshanic Station’s architecture encompasses a number of the building types and architectural
styles that were popular in the region’s growing towns and villages during the late 19" and early 20™ cen-
turies. A number of examples of the two-story, gable-roofed house type with single-pile or double-pile
plans, regular facades of three to five ba%/s and interior gable-end chimneys are present. Ubiquitous in
western New Jersey’s 18™ and early 19™-century housing stock, such dwellings (at least the simpler
forms) remained fairly common in the late 1800s, but disappeared from the local building vocabulary af-
ter 1900. Examples with single-pile, two-room-plans (the traditional I-type) include #s 8, 12, 14, 18, 19
20.63 & 71, photo #s 7, 8, 9, 30 & 36); and there is one example with a double-pile plan located at inven-
tory #68. The gable-fronted two-story house type also is well represented in Neshanic Station including
examples with three-bays facades and presumably side-hall (inventory #s 1, 4, 9. 34, 37, 40 and 71; photo
#s 3, 4, 6 & 18) and gable-fronted houses with either L-shaped (#s 7, 16, 17, 22, 32 & 70; photo #s 10 &
14) or T-shaped plans; photo #s 12 & 13, figure 4). The earlier examples exhibit Italianate or Gothic Re-
vival style detailing, and the latter ones Queen Anne or Colonial Revival style influences (figure 24). The
district includes one notable example of an Italianate cubic villa (inventory #56, photo #27, figure 25),
and one three-bay, side-hall plan house with a mansard roof of Second Empire style derivation (inventory
#2, photo #4). The boxy, hip-roofed type know as the “four square” entered the regional building vocabu-
lary around 1900, and the district contains a few early 20™-century examples (inventory #s 27, 28, 46 &
47, the first two of which are duplexes; photo #s 11 & 12). Somewhat more common are a number of
larger more elaborately detailed hip-roofed dwellings with Queen Anne and Colonial Revival style embel-
lishment (inventory #s 35, 36, 39, 42, 43, 53 & 55, photo #s 16, 17, 19, 23, 25 & 26; figure 24). Dutch
Colonial Revival style influences can be seen in a few dwellings with gambrel roofs (inventory #s 3, 41,
50 & 52; photo #25); a number of other dwellings exhibit Craftsman style influences (inventory #s 24 &
44, photo #21).

The district also contains a number of commercial, industrial and institutional resources, along
with resources related to railroad transportation. The commercial resources include three farm equipment,
automobile and/or truck dealership/repair shops dating to the early 20" century, one a substantial masonry
building (inventory #5, photo #5) and two more modest frame buildings (inventory #s 25 & 48, photo
#11), as well as a small trucking garage from the same era (inventory #65, photo #30). Several frame
warehouses of early 20" century date are present (inventory #s 61, 62 and 72, photo #31), as well as a
cheese factory (inventory #72, photo #37, figure 20), and an icehouse (inventory #68, photo #33). The
district has an early 20™-century frame hotel, (inventory #62, photo #31), a modest hip-roofed block with
Colonial Revival detailing, and also contains several combination store/dwellings, three dating to the 19"
century (inventory #s 8, 13 & 63, photo #s 6 & 36, figures 17 & 18) and one to the early 20" century (in-
ventory #15, photo #7). Of the district’s two institutional buildings, the Neshanic Methodist Church (in-
ventory #33, photo #15, figure 23), an L-shaped building with open belfry erected in 1907/08 that exhibits
an amalgam of Shingle and Gothic Revival influences and occupies a prominently corner location in the
heart of the district. The former Neshanic firehouse (inventory #26, photo #11) is a more modest frame
building erected in the 1930s and exhibiting Colonial Revival style influences. One railroad station sur-
vives, the South Branch passenger station, a frame 2-story Italianate-style building with low-pitched hip
roof, bracketed cornice, and a wide wrap-around pent roof (inventory #60, photo #32). The district also
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contains three railroad bridges, two on the Lehigh Valley line and the third, an abandoned bridge on the
New Jersey Central line. The largest and most impressive of the three is the three-span, riveted-deck-
plate-girder steel bridge spanning the South Branch, which is supported by random ashlar stone abutments
and two piers and dates to 1901/1902 (inventory #75, photo #34). The abandoned Central Railroad bridge
IS a two-span, single-track high-through metal truss bridge with rock-faced stone abutments and central
pier dating to 1916 (inventory #77). The third is a small steel deck bridge with stone abutments that car-
ries the railroad over Pleasant Run Road (inventory #75, photo #20). The district’s one vehicular bridge,
which carries Somerset County Route 667 (EIm Street) over the South Branch, is two-span, lenticular-
truss bridge supported by random ashlar stone abutments and central stone pier (inventory #76). Purport-
edly the only example of its type in New Jersey, the bridge was fabricated by the Berlin Iron Bridge
Company of East Berlin, Connecticut, and erected in 1896.

Outbuildings associated with district houses include a number of frame carriage/house stables and
small garages; good examples of the first are found at inventory #s 37 and 56 (photo #s 18 & 27).

Inventory

In the following inventory, each principal building, structure or site is identified by a number that
locates it on the accompanying district map. All primary entries are categorized as either “contributing”
or “non-contributing” to the significance of the district as evidenced by the integrity of the property’s
main resource. All outbuildings and other resources are listed with their associated primary resource and
identified as either contributing or non-contributing with the designation (C) or (NC). Small sheds, fenc-
ing and other minor features are identified, but not included in the resource count. Physical descriptions
are based on what could be observed from an exterior survey, and dating is based on either cited docu-
mentary sources and/or physical evidence of style and/or construction, as observed from the street. The
acronym NSHS is used for the Neshanic Station Historic Society, and SC for Somerset County.

1 101 Elm Street.
Contributing Block 99/Lot 7 Photo # 2 & 4; figure 22

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling consisting of 3-bay, gable-fronted main block with cross
gables on both side elevations, double-pile side-hall plan, and interior chimney (brick stack with
water table and corbelled drip cap) and a 2-story rear ell with 1-story appendages.

Style: Italianate influences; Craftsman embellishment

Date/history: 1870-1873. Peter Q. Brokaw purchased the lot from John Schenck in 1870 and
presumably built the house shortly thereafter; the 1873 county atlas depicts the “P. Q. Brokaw”
house on the site [Somerset County Deeds, Book D4, page 409; F.W. Beers, Atlas of Somerset
Co. New Jersey, 1873; figures 7 & 22].

Additional description: Now covered with asbestos shingle siding, the exterior features boxed
overhanging eaves, round-arched 2/2-sash gable windows with hoodmolds, 1/1-sash replacement
windows with cornices, end-bay front entry with transom and double glass-and-panel doors
(round-arched glass lights). The flat-roofed front porch has a box cornice; the shingled end piers,
enclosed railing and arched spandrel are early 20™-cetury Craftsmen-style replacements. The front
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gable bargeboard is a late 20™-century replacement. The rear ell has an enclosed, Craftsman-style
side porch with large tapered posts on a cobblestone base. A ¢.1910 photograph indicates that the
dwelling originally had a bracketed box cornice at the roof eaves, 2/2 sashes and louvered shutters;
and the porch featured squared porch posts on paneled pedestals, bracketed cornice and spandrel
brackets [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 24].

Outbuildings: None

103 EIm Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 8 Photo # 4; figure 22

Frame, 2-story, 3-bay, mansard-roofed dwelling with double-pile side-hall plan, shallow mansard-
roofed ell on the east side and interior chimney (brick stack).

Style: Second Empire

Date/history: 1869-73. William Shepard acquired the lot from John Schenck in 1870 (described
in the purchase deed as “Lot No. 2 of Building lots at the Neshanic Station™) and evidently built
the house shortly thereafter; the 1873 county atlas depicts the “W. Shepard” house on the site [SC
Deeds, Book A4, p. 106; Beers, 1873; figures 7 & 22].

Additional description: The exterior features gable dormers, bracketed box cornice, and a full-
width, hip-roofed, glass-enclosed front porch with square posts and paneled railing, whose detail-
ing reveals Colonial Revival influences and may be an early 20"-century replacement. Modern al-
terations include vinyl siding, 1/1-sash replacement windows, vinyl shutters and dormers’ gable
hoods.

Outbuildings: None

105 EIm Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 9 Photo # 2

Frame, 1 and 1/2-story, 2-over-3-bay, gambrel-roofed dwelling

Style: Dutch Colonial

Date/history: Circa 1910-40. This house evidently supplanted the wheelwright shop of William
Shepard, identified by the initials “w. s.” on the lot just east of his house (inventory #2) on the
1873 county atlas [Beers, 1873; figure 7]. According to local tradition, the house incorporates the
wheelwright shop, which as moved forward on the lot [information supplied by Neshanic Station
Historical Society (NSHS)].

Additional description: The exterior features overhanging eaves, an almost full-width shed dor-
mer, 6/6 sash windows, central entry, and a 3-bay, shed-roofed porch with central gable and
square posts and railing with may be a modern replacement, as are the vinyl siding and shutters
and the oriel window on the east side.

Outbuildings: None

100 EIm Street.
Contributing Block 101/Lot 1 Photo # 3
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Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling on a stone foundation consisting of a 3-bay gable-fronted
main block with double-pile side-hall plan and interior chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip
cap); a lower 2-over-3-bay, single-pile, east wing with bank cellar fully above grade on the east-
gable end, low-pitched gable roof and east-gable-end interior chimney (brick stack with corbelled
drip cap); and a 2-story, 1-bay, east-gable appendage whose gable-roof may be a modern altera-
tion.

Style: Italianate

Date/history: 1871-73. Richard G. Ludlow purchased a 3.22-acre lot from John Schenck in 1871
and presumably built the house shortly thereafter; the 1873 county atlas depicts the “R G.
Ludlow” house on the site [SC Deeds, Book G4, page 357; Beers, 1873].

Additional description: The well-preserved exterior features clapboard siding and on the main
block: a box cornice with crown and bed moldings, paired scroll brackets and returns that is car-
ried on the raking eaves, 2/2 sash windows with architrave trim, cornices, bracketed sills (on front)
and louvered shutters, round-arched front gable window with similar detailing, end-bay front entry
with transom and double doors and a flat-roofed porch with entablature, square posts with molded
capitals and pedestals and foliated cut-work railing (double “lyre” pattern); the porch extends
across the front of the east wing. The east wing has a small cornice with wide frieze ornament
with single brackets and “lyre” pattern elements, 2/2-sash window, some with cornices and/or lou-
vered shutters and a front entry with glass-and-panel door.

Outbuildings: Stuccoed masonry 1-story “work shop” (c.1915-40; visible in 1952/53 aerial pho-
tograph; Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 23) with jerkin-head roof, frame gables with novel-
ty siding, overhanging eaves with exposed rafter ends, double 1/1 sash windows (some covered)
with plain trim, 4-light gable window, side-wall entry and interior chimney (C).

205 Pearl Street (J. S. Covert & Sons).

Contributing Block 99/Lot 6 Photo # 5

Masonry, 2-story commercial building (farm equipment/auto dealership & garage) consisting

of a 7-over-8-bay, gable-roofed main block with a 2-bay rear extension (tile-block first story; con-

crete-block second), and a masonry east wing with segmentally arched roof.

Style: None

Date/history: 1928; enlarged mid 20" century. The building was erected in 1928 to replace J. S.
Covert’s original 1923 garage, which was destroyed by fire. The firm of J. S. Covert & Sons op-
erated a farm equipment dealership and garage, which was expanded to include an auto dealership
in 1937; the firm remained in business until 1987 [Branchburg and the River Towns..., page 90;
Neshanic and Neshanic Station, pp. 23, 98 & 99].

Additional description: The front of the main block has a stepped gable parapet capped with split
terra cotta piping. Vehicular entries occupy the four western bays on the first story; the four east-
ern bays are comprised of three large plate glass windows and a transomed entry. The large sec-
ond-story windows also are plate glass; the side and rear windows are metal-framed and multi-
paned. The overhead garage doors are late 20" century replacements, as is the glass-and-metal
door of the transomed entry and the brick-face stucco of the east wing.
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Outbuildings: (1) concrete-block, 1-story, hip-roofed, shed (mid 20" century) (NC); (2) frame, 3-
bay garage/equipment shed (late 20™ century) (NC), along with a small frame garden shed.

207 Pearl Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 5

Frame, 2-story, gable-fronted, T-plan dwelling with 2-bay gable-end facing the street and 2-story
flat-roofed north side addition.

Style: Italianate influences

Date/history: ¢.1873-1880. A ¢.1912 photograph (distant view) documents that this house, the
one time residence of Harry Huff, was extant by that year, and that house was detailed in the Ital-
ianate style [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 34].

Additional description: While the dwelling retains its basic form and fenestration, much of the
exterior fabric appears to date to mid/late 20th-century renovations including vinyl siding, 1/1 sash
replacement windows, oval front gable window and the turn posts and shed-roof of the entry
porch; the bay window on the south gable end is an original feature, and appears in the above-
referenced photograph.

A ¢.1912 photograph indicates that the house once featured Italianate-style detailing such as
round-arched gable windows, bracketed cornices at the roof eaves and on the 1-bay entry porch
and possibly 2/2 sash windows with shutters [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 34].
Outbuildings: Frame, 2-bay, gable-fronted garage (mid 20™ century) with appendage blocking
one of the entry bays (NC).

209 Pearl Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 4

Frame, 2-story, 2-bay, gable-fronted, L-plan dwelling with interior chimney (brick stack).

Date: ¢.1873-1880; perhaps ¢.1876 [owner information, supplied by NSHS].

Style: Italianate

Additional description: Early exterior features include a built-up box cornice with crown mold-
ing that is carried on the raking eaves, semi-octagonal bay window on the front gable-end facade
with concave roof, bracketed box cornice and 1/1 sash windows flanked by plain pilasters, and a
2-bay entry porch whose cornice retained a trefoil ornamented frieze, but whose turned posts are
later replacements, Modern fabric includes aluminum siding, and 1/1 sash window replacements
and vinyl shutters.

Outbuildings: none

211 Pearl Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 3 Photo # 6, second from left

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling/store consisting of two sections: 2-over-3-bay
gable-fronted, double-pile south block (originally a store/post office and now in residential use)
and a 3-bay, single-pile north block with central cross gable, exterior north gable-end chimney
(brick stack) and rear addition.
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Style: Italianate/Gothic Revival influences

Date/history: ¢.1873-1900; the south section, possibly added to the north section, housed a gen-
eral store to which the Neshanic Station Post office moved in 1914. The post office subsequently
relocated but returned to the building in the 1950s after the general store closed; several early and
mid 20" century photographs document the building’s evolution (figure 17) [Branchburg and the
River Towns..., page 86; Neshanic and Neshanic Station, pp. 27 & 28].

Additional description: The “store front” of the south section has a wide central entry with re-
placement door flanked by large multi-pane (replacement) windows. Other features include vinyl
siding, overhanging eaves, 1/1 sash (replacement) windows, round-headed gable windows, central
entry on the northern section with glass-and-panel door, and an enclosed exterior staircase on the
north side of the southern section. The metal entry hoods replace the front porches.

The earliest (c.1914) of the above referenced photographs records that the south section had a cen-
tral entry with glass-and-panel doors flanked by projecting plate-glass display windows and a
shed-roofed 3-bay porch with square posts on pedestals. The porch extended around the north
side to provide access to the enclosed staircase. A second porch on the front of the north section
was detailed in the Italianate style with an entablature, spandrel brackets and pendants creating an
arcaded effect within each bay, square posts on pedestals, and sawn cut railing with foliated motif.
€.1914 & 1923 photographs document that the store’s porch front had been reworked by that time
and a small a small appendage added at the north corner, subsequently removed.

Outbuildings: Frame, 1-bay garage (mid 20™) (NC).

215 Pearl Street.

Contributing Block 99/Lot 2.01  Photo # 6, left

Frame, 2-story, 3-bay, gable-fronted dwelling with double-pile side-hall plan, interior chimney
(brick with corbelled drip cap) and shed-roofed, 2-story north addition fronted by a 2-story, semi-
hexagonal bay window.

Style: Gothic Revival/ltalianate influences

Date: ¢.1873-1880; perhaps ¢.1877 [owner information, supplied by NSHS]; addition possibly
somewhat later.

Additional description: Exterior features include clapboard siding, boxed overhanging eaves
with crown and bed moldings and frieze, 2/2 sash windows with louvered shutters, raked-headed
front gable window with similar detailing, 1/1 sashes in bay window, side-bay front entry with
double doors and segmentally arched surround, 3-bay porch with entablature, square posts with
molded capitals and pedestals and low pitched roof, and 2-story bay window on the south side.
Outbuildings: Frame, 1 and Y2-story, gable-fronted, 1-bay wagon house with shed-roofed, 1-bay
appendage on the north (late 19" century), and with clapboard siding, overhanging eaves and bat-
ten double door on the appendage entry. The main entry has a modern overhead garage door, and
the gable window is a modern replacement (C).

217 Pearl Street.
Non-contributing Block 99/Lot 2
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Frame, one and %2-story, gambrel-roofed, 3-bay dwelling with central chimney (brick stack) and
attached, 2-bay, corss-gable-roofed garage wing.

Style: Colonial Revival influences

Date: ¢.2000

Additional description: The exterior features vertical siding, shed-dormers, box cornice and mul-
ti-pane sash windows.

Outbuildings: none

401 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 12
Frame, 2-story, 2-bay, gable-fronted dwelling with double-pile plan & 1-story rear appendage.
Style: none

Date: ¢.1873-1890

Additional description: The exterior features overhanging eaves, 6/6 sash windows and an L-
shaped porch with turned posts and railing spindles. The posts and railing may be replacements,
as are the vinyl siding and shutters.

Outbuildings: To the rear is a frame, 1-bay, gable-fronted garage with vertical siding (mid 20"
century); the entry has been closed and small windows installed (NC).

403 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 11 Photo # 7, 4™ from left

Frame, 2-story, 3-bay, single-pile-plan, gable-roofed dwelling with interior east-gable-end chim-
ney (brick stack) and shed-roofed rear addition.

Style: none

Date: ¢.1873-1890

Additional description: Exterior features overhanging eaves, synthetic shingle siding, 1/1 sash
windows with vinyl shutters, and a 3-bay porch (possibly an early 20™-century replacement of
Craftsman style derivation) with shingle-clad piers and railing.

Outbuildings: 2-story, gable-roofed barn/garage constructed of frame above the rock-faced ce-
ment block first story (early 20™ century) and featuring metal roof, overhanging eaves, vertical
and corrugated metal siding, multi-pane, metal frame windows on the first story, a horizontal band
of second-story windows on the south gable end, and on the first-story south elevation and entry
with glass-and-panel-door and a 2-bay vehicular entry with modern overhead garage door (C).

405 Olive Street.

Non-contributing Block 98/Lot 10 Photo # 7, third from left

Frame, 2-story, 4-bay, gable-roofed dwelling/store (now a duplex residence) built in two parts
comprised of a 2-bay, gable-fronted east section and 2-bay west section with roof ridge parallel to
the street.

Style: none




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet Neshanic Station Historic District

Somerset County, NJ

Section number 7 Page 10

14

15

Date/history: ¢.1873-1890; west section possibly slightly later. An undated photograph (c.1900)
indicates that the building was erected in two parts and that the west section housed the butcher
shop of “R. V. Gulick;” in the 1940s it housed the local post office [Neshanic and Neshanic Sta-
tion, page 84].

Additional description: The exterior features overhanging eaves, vinyl siding, 1/1 sash replace-
ment windows with plain trim, two front entries with replacement glass-and-panel doors and a 4-
bay porch with box cornice, square posts and turned-spindle railing.

The historic photograph referenced above indicates that the double window to the west of the west
entry (the former shop entry) replaced a semi-octagonal bay window and that the porch had span-
drel brackets and cut-work railing.

Outbuildings: Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed wagon house (late 19"/early 20™ century) with two
wagon entries (modern overhead garage doors) and vinyl siding (C)

407 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 9 Photo # 7, 2" from left

Frame, 2-story, 3-bay, gable-roofed dwelling with single-pile plan, interior gable-end chimneys
(brick stacks with corbelled drip caps) and shed-roofed rear appendage.

Style: Colonial Revival embellishment

Date: ¢.1873-1890

Additional description: It has boxed overhanging eaves with scalloped bargeboards, clapboard
siding, 2/2 sash windows with plain trim and louvered (modern) shutters, central entry with panel
door and a gabled, 1-bay entry porch with “broken” pediment and square posts; the later is pre-
sumably an early/mid 20™-century replacement of an earlier porch.

Outbuildings: The front yard is enclosed by a picket fence (late 20" century).

409 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 8 Photo # 7, 1% on left

Frame, 1 and 1/2-story, 4-bay, gable-fronted dwelling/store with jerkin-head front gable and inte-
rior chimney.

Style: Colonial Revival influences

Date/history: ¢.1910-30. Historic photographs (one dated ¢.1934) reveal that the western half of
the building served as an ice cream and stationery store operated by Varian V. C. Quick and later
as a luncheonette operated for seventeen years by Winfield and Lillie Case [Neshanic and
Neshanic Station, page 104].

Additional description: It has boxed overhanging eaves, vinyl siding (presumably covering wood
shingles visible in above referenced photos), 1/1 sash windows with plain trim, a flat-headed Pal-
ladian window in the front gable, inner-bay entry (the original shop entry) with paneled replace-
ment door, and 3-bay front porch with box cornice, Tuscan columns and square-spindle railing.
The historic photographs referenced above document that the west-end bay on the front originally
featured a semi-hexagonal bay window with paneled apron, which served as a display window for
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the shop; a second entry, now removed, for the residential quarters was located at the west end of
the front. Both entries had glass-and-panel doors.
Outbuildings: none

411 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 7

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling (converted into a duplex) comprised of a 2-bay,
gable-fronted west section with interior chimney (brick stack) and a 2-bay east section with interi-
or east gable-end chimney (brick stack).

Style: Gothic Revival influences

Date: ¢.1873-1890, possibly 1885 [owner information supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: It has boxed overhanging eaves, vinyl siding and 1/1 sash (east section)
and 6/6 sash (west section) windows with plain trim. The east section has an inner-bay entry with
glass-and-panel door and shed-roofed porch with metal replacement posts. The west section has a
point-arched gable window and small double first-story window (the first-story wall is otherwise
blank); the west-section entry opens to the east porch. A ¢.1940 photograph indicates that the
west section’s double first-story window and east-wall entry were extant by that time (figure 19)
[NSHS collection]. The small west porch with metal awning and concrete stoop is a more modern
alteration.

Outbuildings: none

413 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 6

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling comprised of a 2-bay, gable-fronted west section
with interior chimney (brick stack) and a 1-bay east section.

Style: none

Date: ¢.1873-1890, possibly ¢.1885 [owner information supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: The exterior features include boxed overhanging eaves, vinyl siding and
1/1 sash (replacement) windows with plain trim and modern panel shutters, and hip-roofed en-
closed porch.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 1-bay garage (c.1920-40) with clapboard siding, double
batten doors (upper glass lights) and a batten gable “loft” door (C).

415 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 5 Photo # 8, 1° on right

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling comprised of a 3-bay, single-pile-plan main block with in-
terior chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip cap) and a 2-story rear wing with shed-roofed west
appendage.

Style: none

Date: ¢.1873-1890; possibly ¢.1910 [owner information supplied by NSHS].
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Additional description: It has boxed overhanging eaves, vinyl siding, 2/2 sash windows with
plain trim and paneled (modern) shutters, central entry with panel door and 3-bay, hip-roofed
porch with box cornice, turned posts and square-spindle railing; the porch railing appears to be a
late 20™-century replacement.

Outbuildings: Concrete-block, gable-fronted, 1-bay garage (mid 20™) with frame gable and
overhead garage door (NC).

417 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 4 Photo # 8, 2" from right

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling comprised of a 3-bay, single-pile-plan main block with in-
terior east-gable-end chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip cap) and a 2-story rear wing with
interior north-gable-end chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip cap) and shed-roofed east ap-
pendage (possibly an enclosed porch).

Style: none

Date: ¢.1873-1890; possibly somewhat later

Additional description: It has boxed overhanging eaves, clapboard siding, 2/2 sash windows with
plain trim and louvered (modern) shutters, central entry with panel door and 3-bay, hip-roofed
porch with box cornice, turned posts and square-spindle railing.

Outbuildings: none

419 Olive Street.

Non-contributing Block 98/Lot 3 Photo #s 8, 3" from right, & 9
Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling comprised of a 3-bay, single-pile-plan main block with a 2-
story rear wing with shed-roofed east appendage (possibly an enclosed porch); chimney stacks ev-
idently have been removed; attached to the east side is a 1-story, stuccoed masonry appendage that
houses a use (currently a restaurant/pizzeria).

Style: none

Date: c.1873-1890; commercial appendage, late 20™ century

Additional description: It has boxed (rebuilt) overhanging eaves, vinyl siding, 1/1 sash (replace-
ment) windows, central entry with modern door and 1-bay entry porch with square posts and
square-spindle railing; the exterior appears to have been extensively reworked in the late 20™ cen-
tury.

Outbuildings: none

421 Olive Street.

Non-contributing Block 98/Lot 2 Photo # 9, on left

Frame and stuccoed masonry, gable-roofed commercial building/dwelling comprised of three
sections: a 2-story main block of frame construction above the masonry first story and with an in-
terior chimney (brick stack); a 1-story, front block with masonry first story and frame gables; and
a masonry hyphen connecting the two blocks.

Style: none
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Date: late 20" century

Additional description: The front block is in commercial use and features a central entry flanked
by large plate-glass display windows. The second-story of the rear block appears to accommodate
residential use and the first story has a wide garage entrance. The frame portion has board-and-
batten siding.

Outbuildings: none

426 Olive Street.

Non-contributing Block 97/Lot 1

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling with interior chimney (brick stack) and shed-
roofed, 2-story front appendage that presumably replaces the original front porch.

Style: none

Date: ¢.1905-1915; a 1905 map depicts no building on the site [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey. 1905]; late 20" century, shed appendage.

Additional description: While the dwelling retains its form and fenestration pattern, its exterior
fabric is almost entirely of modern provenance, including boxed overhanging eaves, vinyl siding,
1/1 sash (replacement) windows with plain trim and entry with small stoop.

Outbuildings: To the rear is a small frame shed.

422 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 2 Photo # 10

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed dwelling with asymmetrical T plan and that consists of a single-pile
main block and a wide front wing whose overhanging front gable is supported by a 2-story, semi-
hexagonal bay window and with interior chimney (brick stack); a 2-story wing with exterior
chimney extends from the rear.

Style: Queen Ann influences

Date/history: ¢.1904-1910; rear wing, late 20™ century. According to a local history, the house
was built by Mary Lavinia Shurts after her husband Garret Stryker Shurts died suddenly in 1910
and she sold their farm; she moved to Neshanic Station to be near her son Lester Shurts who had
established a feed business in the old creamery in 1898 Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 35].
The present owner, however, dates the house ¢.1904 [owner information supplied by NSHS].
Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the exterior features a slate roof with
metal ridge cresting (scroll ends), boxed overhanging eaves (reworked), 1/1 sash windows with
plain trim, a large multi-pane second-story front window, front entry with glass-and-panel door
and a 2-bay front porch with turned posts and square-spindle railing. A horizontal break in the
vinyl siding at the attic floor level suggests that the concealed original treatment is shingle-clad
gables and clapboarding elsewhere.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 2-bay garage (c.1915-30) with cross-gabled-east extension,
vertical siding and batten sliding doors (C). A picket fence delineates the yard.
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Contributing Block 97/Lot 3

Frame, 1 and 1/2-story, 6-bay, dwelling with jerkin-head gable roof.

Style: Craftsmen/Colonial Revival influences

Date/history: ¢.1913 [owner information supplied by NSHS]. This dwelling was the residence of
D. C. R. Hoff, and its basement, as depicted in a historic photograph, housed incubation facilities
for his poultry business, which raised chicks for mail-order delivery. The two basement incuba-
tors purportedly had a 30,000-egg capacity. [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 94]. Huff also
was a sales agent for manufacturers of chicken breeding equipment, and the rear outbuilding was
fitted with brooders and incubators and also provided storage (grain and other supplies) and office
space [owner information supplied by NSHS]. The building next door at 416 Olive Street (inven-
tory #25) purportedly also was used in the business at some time [Neshanic and Neshanic Station,
page 94].

Additional description: It has wood shingle siding, overhanging eaves with exposed rafter ends,
shed-roofed dormer with 4-unit band of 6/6 sash windows, triple and single 1/1 sash windows with
plain trim, inner bay entry whose door has an oval glass light and 2-bay, shed-roofed front porch
with overhanging eaves (exposed rafter ends), square tapered posts on brick pedestals and baluster
railing. A 1-bay porch with similar detailing serves a secondary entry on the east elevation.
Outbuildings: Frame, 1-story, gable-roofed barn/hatchery (c.1913; owner information supplied
by NSHS) with 3-bay shed appendage (used originally for horses and horse-drawn vehicles, and
subsequently as a garage), overhanging eaves, vertical siding and batten doors (C).

416 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 98/Lot 4 Photo # 11, on right

Frame, 1-story, gable-fronted, 4-bay commercial building/dwelling with an interior chimney.
Style: none

Date/history: ¢.1908-14; remodeled ¢.1940. The building housed an automobile dealer-
ship/garage operated by George Quick, agent for the Metz Company (which manufactured auto-
mobiles ¢.1908-1922); a ¢.1914 photograph identifies it as the “Metz Agency Garage.” It subse-
quently was used in conjunction with the D. C. R. Hoff poultry business (see inventory # 24), and
later housed a fire truck, electrical company, radio and television repair shop, bakery and resi-
dence. Currently it is occupied as a barbershop and residence [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, pp.
94 and 111; information on renovation date & other uses supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: The exterior features include asbestos shingle siding, overhanging eaves,
double and single 1/1 sash windows, three front entries with glass-and-panel doors, and a plate-
glass display window.

The above-referenced ¢.1914 photograph reveals that garage bays with batten sliding doors occu-
pied the entire front elevation; other features included vertical siding and 4/4 sash windows (two
in the front gable and six on the west side wall.

Outbuildings: none
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Contributing Block 97/Lot 5 Photo # 11, 2" from right
Frame, 1-story, 8-bay institutional building comprised of a 1-bay, hip-roofed block with gabled
central projecting entry bay, interior chimney and 1-bay flat-roofed west extension.

Style: Colonial Revival/Craftsman influences

Date/history: 1928; enlarged & remodeled in 1933, 1949-51 & late 20" century. The building
began as a 1-bay, gable-fronted garage of tile-block construction erected to house a fire truck in
1928. The garage was enlarged in 1933 with a frame east addition with hip roof and projecting
entry bay; the addition accommodated an assembly room and kitchen. The west extension, built in
1949-51, replaced the single garage with two truck bays whose front wall was brought forward to
align with the entry bay. Sometime after the construction of a new firehouse, dedicated in 1977,
the building was converted into a community library, work that included removal of the two gar-
age entries [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, pp. 67, 68 and 74].

Additional description: The exterior features wood shingle siding, box cornice with frieze, pedi-
mented front gable with pent roof, central entry with transom, replacement door that is flanked 1/1
sash windows, and 1/1 sash windows with plain trim in the two east bays. An entry with hollow-
core door and flanking windows replaced the garage doors removed in the late 20™-century re-
modeling.

Historic photographs reveal that the original firehouse had double doors (eight lights over three
vertical panels) that appear to have been recycled and replicated in the 1949-51 expansion.
Outbuildings: A small frame storage shed placed on blocks stands to the southeast.

408 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 6 Photo # 11, 1° on left

Frame, 2 and 1/2-story, 4-bay, hip-roofed, duplex dwelling with paired interior chimneys (brick
stacks with corbelled drip caps) and shallow, 2-story projecting bays on both sides, semi-
hexagonal on the first story.

Style: Craftsmen/Colonial Revival influences

Date: ¢.1905-1912; a 1905 map depicts no building on the site [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey, 1905, figure 10]; a local informant has stated that it was built before 1912
[information supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the exterior features include wide over-
hanging enclosed eaves, a hip-roofed dormer with triple 6/6 sash windows, 1/1 sash windows (vi-
nyl shutters), paired inner-bay entries with glass-and-panel doors, flanking triple windows and a 4-
bay front porch with square posts and turned-spindle railing (probably replaced).

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 1-bay garage, serving the west unit, (mid 20™ century),
with overhead garage door and replacement siding (NC). There are two small frame sheds serving
the east unit (c.2000).
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Contributing Block 97/Lot 7 Photo # 12, on right

Frame, 2 and 1/2-story, 4-bay, hip-roofed, duplex dwelling with paired interior chimneys (rebuilt
brick stacks) and shallow, 2-story projecting bays on both sides, semi-hexagonal on the first story.

Style: Craftsmen/Colonial Revival influences

Date: ¢.1905-1912; a 1905 map depicts no building on the site [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey, 1905, figure 10]; a local informant has stated that it was built before 1912
[information supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the exterior features include wide over-
hanging enclosed eaves, a hip-roofed dormer with triple 6/6 sash windows, 1/1 sash windows (vi-
nyl shutters), paired inner-bay entries with glass-and-panel doors, flanking triple windows and a 4-
bay front porch with square posts and closed railing.

Outbuildings: Small frame privy (early 20™ century, perhaps ¢.1905-12) (C).

402 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 8 Photo # 12, on left

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, T-shaped dwelling comprised of a 2-over-3-bay gable-fronted main
block with interior chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip cap) and 1-bay east wing.

Style: Colonial Revival

Date: ¢.1905-1915; a 1905 map depicts no building on the site [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey. 1905].

Additional description: The exterior has clapboard and wood shingle (gables) siding, box cor-
nices with crown and bed moldings and frieze that are carried on the clipped gables to form pented
pediments, 2/2 sash windows with plain trim and modern louvered shutters, 9-light front gable
window, inner-bay front entry, and an L-shaped porch featuring Tuscan columns and box cornice
with crown and bed moldings and frieze; the porch’s east ell is enclosed, and its detailing suggests
that this an early alteration.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 2-bay garage (mid 20™ century) with overhead garage
doors (NC). Vertical board fencing on both side of the house demarcates the rear yard, and incor-
porates gates.

400 Olive Street.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 9 Photo # 13, to right of trees
Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling comprised of a 2-over-3-bay gable-fronted main
block with interior chimney (brick stack with corbelled drip cap) and 1-bay west section with later
rear addition.

Style: Queen Anne influences

Date: ¢.1890-1905; a 1905 map depicts a building on the site [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey. 1905].

Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the exterior features boxed overhanging
eaves, 6/6 sash (replacement) windows, window cornices, inner-bay front entry and an L-shaped
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porch with turned posts, spandrel brackets and square-spindle railing; the porch’s west ell is en-
closed.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 2-bay garage (mid 20" century) with overhead garage
doors (NC).

210 Pearl Street.

Non-contributing Block 97/Lot 10
Frame, 1-story, gable-roofed dwelling with a 1-bay west addition.
Style: none

Date: ¢.1965. Owner states that it was built in 1965 [information supplied by NSHS].

Additional description: Exterior features include vinyl siding, flush eaves, single-pane casement
windows with shutters and a 3-bay, shed-roofed front porch with scalloped frieze and square
posts.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 2-bay garage (mid 20™ century) with overhead garage
doors (NC).

208 Pearl Street.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 11 Photo # 14

Frame, 2-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped dwelling with interior chimney (brick stack) and a rear
appendage.

Style: Queen Anne influences

Date/history: ¢.1880-1905. A ¢.1912 photograph (distant view) documents that this house, the
one-time residence of Frederic Hall, was extant by that year, and that the windows had shutters
[Neshanic and Neshanic Station, page 34].

Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the exterior features overhanging eaves
with plain bargeboards, 1/1 sash windows with plain trim and modern vinyl shutters, a overhang-
ing east gable supported by a 2-story, semi-hexagonal bay window, and a 2-bay shed-roofed front
porch with turned posts and turned-spindle railing.

Outbuildings: Frame, gable-fronted, 1-bay garage (c.1925-40) with batten double doors (C).

301 Maple Avenue. Neshanic United Methodist Church.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 12 Photo # 15; figure 23

Frame, 1-story, gable-roofed, L-shaped, church with stone foundation and 3-story tower incorpo-
ratings an entry vestibule and open belfry set at 45 degree angle within the right angle of the two
sections of the building; on the west or rear elevation is a cross gable and secondary entry vesti-
bule.

Style: Shingle/Gothic Revival

Date/history: 1907/08. Construction of the church began in 1907, and it was dedicated in the fol-
lowing year. The lot was acquired in 1906 for $350, and the cost of the building was about
$6,800. The first minister, John May, charged with raising the building funds, obtained a pledge
for $3,500 James Buchanan Duke, the tobacco millionaire, contingent on matching funds, which
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May matched with $500 raised from the “Methodist denomination” and a pledge from John
Wanamaker [Neshanic and Neshanic Station, pp. 41-46; Branchburg and the River Towns, page
82].

Additional description: Exterior features include overhanging eaves with exposed rafter ends and
plain bargeboards, wood shingle siding articulately within a semi-elliptical break on each gable,
and point-arched stained-glass 1/1 sash windows with plain trim (arranged in 6-windows bands on
the gable ends). The semi-hexagonal entry vestibule forming the first story of the tower has three
entries with glass-and-panel doors (the entry being double leaf) and is sheltered by curved porch
featuring overhanging eaves with exposed rafter ends and wide semielliptical frieze and large
square posts. The open belfry has shingle-clad corner piers extending as pinnacles above the roof
line; trefoil spandrel brackets framing a point-arched opening on each side, pyramid-roof with ball
finial and overhanging eaves (exposed rafter ends), and a square-spindle railing added sometime
after the church was erected. Early photographs (see reference above) reveal that the belfry pinna-
cles originally had ball-capped pyramid finials, probably of copper or pressed metal; an elaborate
weathervane similarly capped the belfry roof.

Outbuildings: A black-painted metal fence of recent date encloses the playground to the west of
the church.

303 Maple Avenue.

Contributing Block 97/Lot 13

Frame, 2-story, gable-fronted dwelling with interior chimney (brick stack) and overhanging cross
gable supported by a semi-hexagonal bay window on the east side.

Style: Colonial Revival

Date/history: ¢.1905-1915; the site is vacant on the 1905 map [New Jersey Raritan Quadrangle.
U.S. Geological Survey, 1905]

Additional description: Now covered with vinyl siding, the e